
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have saved the Authority approx. £3.10 in printing costs

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

AGENDA
Committee COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

WEDNESDAY, 2 OCTOBER 2019, 4.30 PM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Jenkins (Chair)
Councillors Ahmed, Carter, Ebrahim, Gibson, Goddard, Philippa Hill-
John, Lent and McGarry

Time 
approx.

1  Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest  

To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3  Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 
September 2019.

4  Older People: Access to Information, Advice and Services  
(Pages 11 - 90)

Committee briefing on how the Council is accommodating the need of 
the older Council services and how the development of the digital 
strategy is being aligned with the needs of an ageing community.

4.35 pm

5  Council House Build and Design Standards Update  
(Pages 91 - 104)

Committee briefing

5.35 pm



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

6  Way Forward  

To review the evidence and information gathered during consideration 
of each agenda item, agree Members comments, observations and 
concerns to be passed on to the relevant Cabinet Member by the 
Chair, and to note items for inclusion on the Committee’s Forward 
Work Programme.

7  Work Programme  (Pages 105 - 106)

8  Correspondence Statement  (Pages 107 - 110)

For Members to consider correspondence sent and received since the 
last Committee meeting and receive an update on any items 
outstanding.

9  Urgent Items (if any)  

To include any new items received past the publication date, or any 
supporting information for the agenda items such as appendices or 
presentations received past publication date. 

10  Date of next meeting  

The next meeting of the Community & Adult Services  Scrutiny 
Committee is scheduled for 6 November at 4:30pm in Committee 
Room 4, County Hall, Cardiff.

Davina Fiore
Director Governance & Legal Services
Date:  Thursday, 26 September 2019
Contact:  Andrea Redmond, 02920 872434, a.redmond@cardiff.gov.uk



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

WEBCASTING 

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except 

where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on 
the website for 6 months.  A copy of it will also be retained in 

accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have 
consented to being filmed.  By entering the body of the Chamber you 
are also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 

images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the 

public gallery area.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please 
contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or 

email Democratic Services

mailto:democraticservices@cardiff.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

11 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present: Councillor Jenkins(Chairperson)
Councillors Ahmed, Carter, Goddard, Philippa Hill-John, Lent 
and McGarry

21 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillors Ebrahim and Gibson

22 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None received.

23 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairperson.

24 :   CARDIFF AND VALE OF GLAMORGAN REGIONAL SAFEGUARDING 
BOARDS ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 

Members were advised that this was a briefing to Committee on the contents of the 
Cardiff & Vale of Glamorgan Regional Safeguarding Annual Report 2018-19.  
Members were reminded that in line with the Committee’s terms of reference, this 
item would focus on the work of the Adults Safeguarding Board.

The Chairperson welcomed Cllr Susan Elsmore Cabinet Member for Health, Social 
Care and Wellbeing, Claire Marchant Director of Social Services and Co-Chair of the 
Board and Kate Bishop, Business Manager in Safeguarding Services.   
The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member to make a statement in which she said 
that this was an important item and the report references the number of partners who 
are importantly involved.  It was noted that the Social Services and Well Being Act 
set out statutory footing for Regional Safeguarding Board’s and requires them to 
publish Annual Reports.  There has been an increased focus on working together in 
the sector, work has progressed in the care provider protocols and the importance of 
having regional escalating concerns procedures.  The Cabinet Member wished to 
reference the Safeguarding Awards which recognised the work of the Board, which is 
supported by a small business unit, hosted by Cardiff Council and managed by Kate 
Bishop.

Members were provided with a presentation by Kate Bishop, after which the 
Chairperson invited questions and comments:

Members referred to attendance figures for the Board and noted that representatives 
from the Ambulance and Fire Service had not attended; Members asked if substitutes 
were sent and if they had attended the sub-groups.  Officers advised that in relation 
to the Fire service there had been a change in staff so there were gaps that were 
now being addressed; Links had been made with the Ambulance service and they 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

have since attended the Board.  In relation to sub-groups, a piece of work was being 
undertaken on monitoring attendance.  It was noted that not all Regional 
Safeguarding Boards (RSB’s) publish attendances in their Annual report.

Members referred to the Audit Sub-Group figures and asked how the RSB’s interpret 
trends etc.  Officers explained that the significant increase in referrals is seen as a 
positive as awareness around duty to report has increased.  There was useful work 
being done in relation to high volume referrals and what does/does not need 
reporting.  Preventative measures were being implemented and there as a focus on 
Neglect/Self-Neglect.

Members noted that there were no Adult Safeguarding Orders and sought more 
information on this.  Officers explained that this was the picture across Wales and in 
fact there had only ever been 2 in Wales.  The Director added that this gives 
assurances around the exceptional powers under the Social Services Well Being Act.

Members asked if there were any BME organisations represented on the Board.  
Officers weren’t able to answer but offered to take it to the Board as a query.

Members noted the references in the report in relation to the Children’s and Adults 
Practice Review, Significant backlogs and that the Board had experienced difficulties 
in reaching Board agreement etc. and asked for more information on this.  Officers 
explained that 3 years ago there had been a backlog due to there being just 1 
business manager and no support; processes weren’t as robust as they could have 
been and cases weren’t completed in the time they would have wanted.  This is no 
longer the case, there are very robust processes in places and all staff are on board 
and understand them.  With reference to the Board disagreements, this was due to 
the knowledge and experience around the Children and Adult Practise Review, it was 
very new then and people had had to get to grips with it.  The Director added that 
arrangements are now very effective, there has been a need to address historic 
issues and reviews, lot of work in relation to this learning was now being 
disseminated.

AGREED:  that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way 
forward.

25 :   QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE 2019-20, ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES & 
PEOPLE & COMMUNITIES 

Members were advised that this item would consider Quarter 1 Performance in two 
parts: Part one would consider performance from the Social Services – Adult 
Services Directorate and Part two would consider the relevant performance from the 
People & Communities Directorate.

Social Services – Adult Services

The Chairperson welcomed Cllr Susan Elsmore Cabinet Member for Health, Social 
Care and Wellbeing and Claire Marchant Director of Social Services.

The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member to make a statement in which she said 
that she was pleased to introduce the report, and she was pleased to welcome Care 
Inspectorate Wales (CIW) in April after which positive feedback had been received.  

Page 6



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Co-location had made a real difference in collaborative work; CIW had noted that 
staff treated people with respect and were positively enthusiastic.  The Cabinet 
Member was pleased to see the increase in First Point of Contact/Independent Living 
Team and positive outcomes were already being seen here.  There had been a slight 
increase in delayed transfers of care (DToc) usually there was a reduction following 
winter pressures, but this hadn’t been the case this year.  This was being addressed 
however by collaborative working by staff and the Chief operating Officer had 
commended staff for their efforts.

Members were provided with a presentation after which the Chairperson invited 
questions and comments from Members;

Members noted the references to capacity in the report and asked how this issue had 
come about and how it was being addressed.  The Director stated that there had 
been a significant programme of transformation, there was lots of work still to do and 
it needs to be properly resourced.  There was money from Welsh 
Government/ICF/Transformation Fund and a whole system transformation was 
underway.  It had been considered right and proper to include and highlight the 
issues in the report and that they are being addressed.

Members asked if transformation was impacting on capacity issues and how this may 
effect a restructure.  The Director stated that she wasn’t referring to a restructure, it 
was about having an effective operating model which was critical; a strength based 
approach working in a ’what matters’ way requires the whole workforce to be trained.  
Lots of work was already underway with regards to commissioning, learning 
disabilities etc. so it was more about a change in the way of working rather than a 
restructure.

Members asked why sickness rates were 4.5 average up on last year.  The Director 
acknowledged that this was an area of concern, officers were working with HR 
People Services and had invested for more support.  The highest sickness rates 
were with Direct Services, there were issues with the age of the workforce as well as 
the type of work undertaken.  Officers were trying to get to the root causes and were 
supporting people into the right jobs for them.

Members considered that the report formatting was difficult to read across and cross 
reference and that also in some areas there was no comparative data.

Members asked if there was a realistic working target in relation to DToc and if there 
were issues in relation to delay/move on space, The Director explained that she 
hasn’t revisited the target as yet, this year it will inevitably be higher than last year 
due to a number of factors, mainly capacity in the Domiciliary Care Market, 
challenges with recruitment and retention and Regulation Inspection of Care Act.  
There was a major retender early next year and it was hoped that things would be 
more sustainable going forward.  An increased demand in hospital setting had placed 
pressure on the whole system.  The Director agreed to bring a report back to 
committee on the review of the Community Resource Team and Intermediate Care.

Members asked why there was difficulty in recruiting Mental Health practitioners.  
Members were advised it was because they were highly skilled. A focus on this issue 
would remain and it was important to have succession planning in place.

Page 7



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

People & Communities

Cllr Elsmore remained for this part of the item.  The Chairperson welcomed Cllr 
Thorne, Cabinet Member for Housing and Communities, Sarah McGill, Corporate 
Director People & Communities, and Jane Thomas, Assistant Director Housing & 
Communities.

The Chairperson invited Councillor Thorne to make a statement in which she said 
that she was pleased to introduce the report; Housing and Communities were making 
excellent progress against their corporate commitment and performance indicators.  
Cardiff had been recognised for its innovative council housing programme including 
its approach to developing difficult sites delivering quality sustainable homes. The 
shipping containers had been delivered to the Bute Street site making progress on 
the innovative scheme to house homeless families, providing 13 flats, short term 
homes while long term solutions are found.  There was continued success with the 
community hubs, officers were working with the communities on a number of 
projects.  The multi-disciplinary homeless team are fully operational and working to 
address the complex needs of rough sleepers.

The Chairperson invited Councillor Elsmore to make a statement in which she said 
that she was pleased to introduce the elements of the report that fall within her 
portfolio.  Members were updated on Older Person’s accommodation and the 
Sandown Court refurbishment scheme which had received a platinum level award, 
which was a hallmark of good practice recognised by Welsh Government.  There 
were plans to refurbish Worcester Court and these were progressing. The Cabinet 
Member emphasised the importance of addressing older people’s needs especially 
VAWSAV which requires a personalised approach, there was work being done on 
this with multi agency partnership working but still some way to go, a report would be 
brought to a future committee.

The Chairperson invited questions and comments from Members.

Members asked if the statistics in the report only related to Council Homes and were 
advised they did, there was a significant amount more that were sold through Wates.

Members asked why the target for building council homes was green when in 
previous years the target had not been met.  Officers explained that the development 
programme doesn’t follow a steady path, they have to take a view and it was likely 
that the target would be achieved; officers remain confident even though 
development is very complex and there are lots of variables.  Members considered it 
would be useful to be informed of any concerns or reservation in meeting the target.

Members referred to the negative press that Container Homes has received in the 
national press in relation to air circulation, overheating, and overcrowding and sought 
assurances on this.  Officers explained they have been very careful over the quality 
of the containers and they exceed space standards.  Lots of work has been done in 
terms of heating and air quality and officers were confident with the containers.

Members wished to congratulate staff on exceeding the targets of providing advice 
on Universal Credit and the excellent work carried out. 

With reference to it being a red target, Members asked what work was being down to 
lobby Welsh Government on the Local Housing Allowance.  The Cabinet Member 
explained that this was a national issue, it was a huge problem, with people on very 
low incomes being forced into private rented accommodation and having to top up 

Page 8



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

the rent.  Staff have been fantastic and proactive in contacting people rather than 
waiting for them to seek advice.

Members noted the work being done to address social isolation in relation to older 
people and families but asked what was being done about people living alone.  
Officers explained that there are programmes run through the Hubs, delivered by 
third sector partners that promote activities for people of all ages.  It is a major issue, 
also seen via the gateway and complex needs clients and it is something that can be 
taken forward.

Members asked for an update on Satellite Pods. Officers explained that they have 
identified two sites and they have been referred to Planning, however there hasn’t 
been an encouraging response.  The Cabinet Member stated that she has contacted 
the Chief Planning Officer and explained the issues so they understand the priorities.

Members asked for the definition of ‘temporary’ in relation to the satellite pods and 
were advised that they would be temporary for each individual, so transient in effect.  
It was further explained that they are temporary buildings, aimed at clients who do 
not want to engage, it is a pilot to see if it works.

Members referred to the difficulties experienced with contractors and asked for more 
information on this.  Officers explained that there is a lot of competition in Cardiff for 
builders, a tender had been put out recently and only 2 builders had come back on it.  
There has been difficulties with vacant property work, so issues in the framework 
need to be addressed.  One more contractor has also withdrawn.  It was explained 
that the supply chain was a challenge, along with a level of national uncertainty at the 
present time.

Members noted the levels of voids, and that quarter by quarter the numbers are 
increasing; and that the time taken to bring the voids back to use.  Members asked 
for more information on this.  Officers explained that this was a huge amount of work 
and some factors can and cannot be addressed.  Often properties became empty 
due to the age of the previous and tenant and some have had no work carried out in 
them for years, so need lots of maintenance work.  There had been issues with the 
previous contractor but now there was a service in place and there should be 
capacity to clear the voids and backlog by the end of the year, with the note that it is 
difficult to know how many will come in each month and what needs to be done to 
each one.  Currently all have WQHS kitchens and bathrooms fitted and a certain 
standard of decoration before re-letting, but it may need to be considered that this 
slips if the numbers continue to come in as they have been, this is an ongoing piece 
of work.

Members considered it was time for a serious radical review of the overly 
complicated procurement process.

Members referred to the Commissioning Service for Male Victims of Domestic Abuse 
and asked for an update on the current position.  Members were advised that 
Bridgend/Vale of Glamorgan/Cardiff will commission and other local authorities will 
observe for now and hopefully come on board once services are commissioned and 
they can see how well they are working.

AGREED:  that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way 
forward.

Page 9



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

26 :   COMMUNITY AND ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - DRAFT 
WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 

The Principal Scrutiny Officer updated Members on the work programme and advised 
that it is a working document that needs to remain flexible for additional items to be 
added to agendas as and when needed.  The work programme would be reviewed 
by Committee throughout the year.

Members discussed various topics for inclusion in the work programme and the 
Principal Scrutiny Officer advised that she would circulate the work programme to 
Members in the coming week but emphasised that it would be a working document 
that could be revised and updated as needed.

27 :   CORRESPONDENCE STATEMENT 

Noted.

28 :   URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY) 

None received

29 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

2 October 2019 at 4.30pm in Committee Room 4 County Hall, Cardiff.

The meeting terminated at 6.50 pm

Page 10



CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
2 October 2019

OLDER PEOPLE: Access to Information, Advice and Services

Purpose of Report

1.    During work programming for 2019/20, Members considered a range of source 

documents to assist in identifying and prioritising appropriate areas for scrutiny. 

During deliberations, Members confirmed they would like Scrutiny to support policy 

development on older people’s access to information, advice and services.

2.    During September’s Committee, Members confirmed they wished for an update on   

   how the Council is accommodating the need of the older person in accessing  

   services, focusing on:

 How the development of the Council’s digital strategy is being aligned with 

the needs of an ageing community.

 An overview of how the hubs are specifically accommodating the need of 

older people accessing information, advice and services.

Scope of Scrutiny

3.     The scope of this scrutiny is to use the evidence presented to Committee to judge  

  whether the Council’s commitments, and the digital inclusion of the elderly, are 

  being delivered effectively. 

4.     Relevant Cabinet Members and Cardiff Council officers will be in attendance to 

  brief Members and answer questions. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Background

5.     As detailed in the Council’s Corporate Plan (2019-22), the number of people living 

in Cardiff aged between 65 and 84 is expected to rise 40% in the next twenty 

years1. As such, with the development of a digital agenda and digital services, the 

inclusion of the elderly and their needs must be at the forefront of service 

developments. 

Cardiff Council’s Digital Strategy

6.   Cardiff Council’s Digital Strategy (attached at Appendix A) has been established in  

  order to provide guidelines which support the Council’s Capital Ambition 

  commitment to adopt a ‘Digital First’ approach; making the best use of new  

  technologies to run the Council’s services as efficiently and effectively as possible.

7.   The digital vision for Cardiff is a Connected City. There are 9 strands that make a   

   ‘Connected Cardiff.’

               

1 Cardiff Council’s Corporate Plan is available at: https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-
and-policies/Corporate-Plan/Documents/Corporate%20Plan%202019-22%20FINAL%20ENG.pdf

Page 12

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Corporate-Plan/Documents/Corporate%20Plan%202019-22%20FINAL%20ENG.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Corporate-Plan/Documents/Corporate%20Plan%202019-22%20FINAL%20ENG.pdf


8.   Action Plans were developed for each ‘Connected Cardiff’ strand which sets out 

  current positions and future aspirations. The remit of this committee allows for 

  scrutiny into the Connected Citizens, Connected Partners and Connected Services  

  strand; the Action Plan for which is attached at Appendix B.

9.    During the meeting, Members will briefed by officers from the Resources and 

People & Communities Directorate about how the relevant strands meets the need 

of an elderly population and how it is being implemented (See Appendix C).

Page 13



Dewis Cymru

10.    Dewis is a gateway service providing information and advice about health and 

         well-being in Wales. Its aim is to provide quality information, from a network of 

         social care, health and third sector organisations within one online resource 

        directory. 

11.    Dewis Cymru was established following the Social Services and Well-being 

         (Wales) Act 2014 which put in place the requirement for individuals to get the help  

          they need in order to lead healthy, happy lives.

12.    Council officers from Social Services Directorate who are responsible for the 

         delivery of Dewis Cyrmu across the region in providing information, advice and 

         assistance to the elderly will be in attendance to brief Members on the progress 

         Dewis has made within this field, how they tie into the agenda of digital inclusion 

         for the elderly along with an update on their outreach work. See Appendix D. 

Page 14



Directorate Delivery Plan

13.    The Council’s Directorate Delivery Plans detail how each Directorate is working to 

deliver the commitments set out within the Council’s Corporate Plan. The People & 

Communities Directorate Delivery Plan, 2019-20 contains the following 

commitments relating to digitalisation of public facing services:

Page 15



Way Forward

14.    Members are invited to consider the information set out within this report, the   

   attached Appendix’s along with the verbal briefing they will receive at Committee 

         and consider how effective, and inclusive, the digital development of Council  

         services is in recognising and meeting the needs of Cardiff’s elderly population.  

15.    Councillor Susan Elsmore (Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health and Well-

   being) and Councillor Lynda Thorne (Cabinet Member for Housing and 

   Communities) have been invited and may wish to make a statement. Officers from 

   both the Resources, People & Communities and Social Services Directorate have 

   also been invited to take Members through the current work in this field. 

  Legal Implications

16.    The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Page 16



     Financial Implications

17.    The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications 

at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with 

or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that 

goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to:

I. Consider the contents captured within this report and subsequent 

Appendixes’, note the information received at Committee and provide the 

Cabinet Member and Directorates with any comments, concerns or 

observations.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services
26 September 2019

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



aAPPENDIX A

Page 19



DIGITAL STRATEGY 2

The Cardiff Council Digital Strategy has been established in order to provide guidelines that 
will support Cardiff Council’s ambition to digitalise services. It contains the principles that will 
enable Cardiff Council to deliver benefits by exploring new ways of working, increasing service 
accessibility, and improving customer service. 

This document covers the following components;

Purpose

Intro

Where Cardiff is now

Vision

Principles

Governance

This strategy will enable Cardiff Council 
to achieve the ‘Digital First’ approach set 
out in the Capital Ambition programme, 
which sets out the Council’s priorities for the 
administration over the next 5 years. This 
Digital Strategy is intended to run alongside 
the Capital Ambition plan and draw out 
the digital themes contained within the 
modernisation section, and throughout the 
document.

Only through the successful 
implementation of this digital strategy 
will we be able to successful modernise and 
integrate our public services, thus enabling us 
to achieve the other six wellbeing objectives as 
set jointly by the public service board in Cardiff, 
as depicted in the diagram below.

Digital initiatives will form part of the Council’s 
response to the provisions laid out by the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
Adopting further Digital projects and ways of 
working will directly contribute towards the 
Council fulfilling its obligations under this act.

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

PURPOSE

Page 20



DIGITAL STRATEGY 3

Cardiff is a 
great place to 

grow up

A Capital City that 
Works for Wales 

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Cardiff Grows in 
a Resilient Way

Cardiff is a great 
place to grow older

Supporting people 
out of poverty

Safe, Confident 
& Empowered 
Communities

Modernising 
& Integrating our 
Public Services 

WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES

Page 21



DIGITAL STRATEGY 4

As we become increasingly reliant on digital devices and digital services, we expect to be 
able to communicate with organisations at any time of day or night. We want to find 
information, request services or report problems quickly, easily and at our convenience. 
We are increasingly reliant on effective automated services as our first contact point with 
banks, shops and service providers. For many of us this is the easiest way to interact as we 
can choose when we do it whilst avoiding waiting in queues for our calls to be answered. 
Cardiff Council should be no different.

As a Council, we already offer online access and automated services in a number of 
areas, but we need to do more. By providing simple, accessible means for customers to 
communicate with us, we can encourage a shift away from the traditional, more expensive 
contact methods such as telephone and face-to-face contact. More of the high-volume, 
low-value contacts that we deal with should be completed at our customers’ convenience, 
enabling Council staff to focus on the more complex and sensitive enquiries that benefit 
from the human touch.

Focussing on digital services doesn’t just make things better for our customers – we’ll 
be able to work more efficiently, and reassign our resources to more critical services. 
Customers will always be able to speak to a person when they need to, and the person 
they speak to will be able to provide improved customer service. Behind-the-scenes, we’re 
using digital technology to simplify and automate processes which will reduce our reliance 
on expensive and bulky physical hardware. All this can help us manage the rising cost and 
demand pressure which the Council is facing.

We’re also becoming a more agile and flexible organisation, with staff able to work from 
any location as we make more efficient use of physical space and mobile technology. 
While working around the city Council staff- such as social workers and the housing repair 
teams- carry smart devices which allow them to  receive up-to-the-minute instructions and 
report on progress without the need to return to base. Simple changes like this mean that 
productivity has significantly increased, and our staff can focus on core business rather 
than administrative tasks.

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Introduction

Page 22



DIGITAL STRATEGY 5

IntroductionThis is a really exciting time for Cardiff Council. The technology we need to improve our efficiency 
and accessibility is becoming more and more affordable, making its adoption both a realistic 
proposition and an obvious choice. We continue to face operational challenges because of 
ongoing reductions in funding. At the same time we’re seeing unprecedented growth across 
Cardiff with more businesses, more workers, and more residents choosing to move to the capital. 
The only way that we can continue to provide the breadth and quality of services to our citizens is 
to make significant improvements in how we operate.

In this Digital Strategy, we’ve laid out our approach to transforming Cardiff Council into a modern, 
digitally supported organisation - able to maintain excellent service delivery in a more efficient, 
simple and accessible way. We have agreed and adopted a set of simple principles so that we can 
all pull in the same direction. Improving outcomes for citizens remains our first priority, and we’re 
confident that the opportunities afforded to us by new digital technologies will enable us to make 
improvements across the board that will be of benefit everyone.

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Page 23



DIGITAL STRATEGY 6

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Where Cardiff is now

READY

Page 24



DIGITAL STRATEGY 7

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

WILLING

Page 25



DIGITAL STRATEGY 8

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Where Cardiff is now

ABLE

Page 26



DIGITAL STRATEGY 9

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

ABLE

Page 27



CONNECTED 
CARDIFF

CONNECTED 
CITIZENS

Technology enables citizens 
to interact with, and be 

informed about, the 
Council in ways that are 

convenient to them

CONNECTED 
ELECTED

MEMBERS
Technology allows elected 

members to better understand 
and meet the needs 

of citizens 

CONNECTED 
SERVICES 

Technology makes services 
more accessible, with better 
outcomes delivered through 

joined-up working

CONNECTED 
VISITORS 

Technology improves 
accessibility in Cardiff and 

makes the city an easier 
and more enjoyable 

place to visit 

CONNECTED 
EDUCATION 
Technology is used to 

improve education 
outcomes and embed 

digital skills in the 
workforce

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Introduction

Vision for our Digital Strategy

Our digital vision for Cardiff is 
a connected city in which 
new technologies empower 
citizens to get the best from 
services that matter to them

Page 28



DIGITAL STRATEGY 11

CONNECTED 
CARDIFF

CONNECTED 
CITIZENS

Technology enables citizens 
to interact with, and be 

informed about, the 
Council in ways that are 

convenient to them

CONNECTED 
BUSINESSES 

Technology makes 
Cardiff a more attractive 
place to do business and 
encourages innovation

CONNECTED 
PARTNERS 

Technology makes a real 
difference to how joined-

up services are provided to 
citizens 

CONNECTED 
WORKFORCE 

Technology allows 
effective engagement 
and improved working 

practices

CONNECTED 
MANAGEMENT

Technology provides the 
information and tools to 
manage an effective and 

efficient workforce

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Page 29



DIGITAL STRATEGY 12

Digital projects and initiatives within Cardiff Council will be guided by the following principles:

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Key Principles

PRINCIPLE: DESCRIPTION:
The customer 
experience comes first

• Delivering exceptional experience to our citizens and staff 
remains our primary focus.

• No Digital project will ever have a negative impact on the 
customer experience. Whether we are delivering changes 
to customer-facing processes or behind-the-scenes we will 
ensure that the current standard of customer experience is 
maintained or, wherever possible, improved.

• We will ensure that the same range of services and customer 
experience is available to our customers, regardless of the 
channel by which they contact us.

Digital interactions 
will become the 
first choice for our 
customers 

• We will deliver simple, efficient and attractive Digital services 
that customers will choose to use instead of the traditional 
contact channels. We refer to this as making our services 
‘Digital First’.

• Over time we will aim to make appropriate services ‘Digital 
by Default’, meaning that they will primarily be available 
digitally.

• We recognise that not every citizen will be able to use digital 
services so we will always ensure that there is an accessible 
route for them to interact with us. However, this will become 
the exception rather than the norm. We will also work to 
improve levels of digital inclusion across Cardiff.

Modern, fit-for-
purpose technology 
will be used to ensure 
efficiency

• We aim to use Cloud-based solutions wherever we can in 
order to reduce reliance on physical hardware that must be 
maintained, repaired and replaced.

• We will ensure that our technology platforms can be rapidly 
scaled up or down to ensure that the associated costs 
directly relate to service demand. We should only pay for 
services that we use.

• We will seek to make the most of emerging technologies; 
delivering enhanced customer service through the use of 
smart devices, virtual assistants and social media platforms

Page 30



DIGITAL STRATEGY 13

Digital projects and initiatives within Cardiff Council will be guided by the following principles:

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Key Principles

PRINCIPLE: DESCRIPTION:
Technology solutions will 
be re-used, purchased and 
developed responsibly

• Our default approach to the procurement of technology 
solutions is to re-use before we buy, and to buy before we 
develop something new.
o We will re-use existing technology where it is fit-for-purpose
o If our existing technology is not fit-for-purpose we will seek 

to procure an existing solution that is the best fit for our 
requirements

o If no solution exists that can fulfil our requirements we will 
seek to develop a solution

• When buying or developing a technology solution we will 
ensure that we identify the best fit option to meet our current 
and future requirements, and to provide value for money.

• We will ensure that existing technology platforms are fully 
supported, that solutions are developed to a corporate 
standard, and that our ICT Service team has the required 
training, knowledge and support to ensure ongoing 
maintenance and support can be delivered.

Digital services will support 
collaborative working to 
improve outcomes for our 
customers

• Digital solutions will be implemented across service areas 
and external suppliers to improve collaborative working. The 
adoption of Cloud-based solutions will increase accessibility 
and agility.

• Cardiff Council will prioritise analysis of the service data that 
we gather so that we can make better decisions, handle and 
forecast customer demand, and improve collaborative working.

• Where appropriate we will share data across areas in support 
of improved service delivery and to improve outcomes for 
citizens. Security controls will be proportionate, to protect data 
and services, but not impede user accessibility.

Digital services will be con-
tinually monitored, assessed 
and improved

• We will always test Digital services thoroughly before releasing 
them for general use. This will include piloting them to assess 
the customer experience and completing detailed technical 
testing to check that they fulfil requirements. 

 
• Digital services will be monitored to assess the user experience 

and levels of engagement. We will use the data that we gather 
to make continual improvements to services.

• We will document the lessons we have learn as we expand the 
number of Digital services we offer and will seek advice and 
guidance from organisations that have experience in Digital 
transformation to avoid reinventing the wheel or making the 
same mistakes that they have made. 

Page 31



DIGITAL STRATEGY 14

Various groups and boards will have responsibility for providing governance on 
Digital projects and initiatives. Key responsibilities are outlined below:

• Cabinet and SMT accountable for delivering Digital agenda
• The Cabinet Member for Finance, Modernisation and Performance will 

oversee the delivery of the programme
• Digital Cardiff Board to drive Digital First agenda, offering leadership, 

support and challenge
• Monthly meetings chaired by Chief Executive
• Regularly updated on initiatives
• Ensure coherent approach, enable and maximise synergies
• Strategic management by Chief Digital Officer

CABINET AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT

CAPITAL 
AMBITION

CORPORATE
DIGITAL

INITIATIVES

SERVICE SPECIFIC
DIGITAL INITIATIVES

DIGITAL   CARDIFF

DIGITAL
STRATEGY

Governance

Page 32



APPENDIX B

P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



Cardiff. 

Council 

2,000 ... 
. .• •

173% 

Ce, Connected Mana ement 

Ce) Connected Services 

Ce) Connected Cillzens 

CONNECTED WORKFORCE 
Technology allows effective engagement and improved working practices 

ICT enable the workforce to utilise the 
technology available to them. Over 2,000 
mobile devices provided to staff. 

Service Desk provide a responsive 
ICT support structure across the 
authority with remote and on-site 
support staff. Over 30,000 Tickets 
raised through Service Desk. 

TI::ansition of 4 7 services from traditional 
storage documenting methods to SharePoint. 
120,000+ documents migrated to date. 
In-built document retention system helps 
create robust governance working practises. 

Implemented an internal instant messaging 
service allowing for more efficient 
communications between staff. Reduces 
pressures that current email volumes put on 
Council ICT infrastructure. 173% increase in 
Instant Messaging usage across the authority. 

Internal intranet is the online hub for staff 
information. Staff are kept informed of 
Council news via circulation of Core Brief 
and Staffinformation emails. 

Staff Surveys are completed online via 
web-based form allowing for non-office 
based employees to complete. 

Time period (April 2018 - March 2019) 

Mobile Working 

Several Departments have bespoke 
systems in order for 
staff to be able to 
carry out 
Role-specific 
work remotely 
and securely: 

These systems enable the mobile workforce to 
receive and complete their work out and about and 
away from the office. It allows them to communicate 
with colleagues and management to manage 
workload more efficiently as well as giving 
employees a consistent working pattern. 

Workforce Stats 

60 Civil Enforcement Officers 
issued 6000 Parking and 
15,000 MTC fines in the field 
on average per month. 

129 Responsive Repair 
Operatives using electronic 
scheduling system, over 9000 
visits booked per month. 

29 Refuse vehicles with 
digital waste collection 
trackers. Provides real-time 
Waste Collection updates to 
customer service staff. 

Over 18,000 Caretaking 
visits carried out arranged 
via Caretaking Application. 

Self - Service 

DigiGov - Self service HR Tool. Allows employees to 
view their leave requests, track claims and view/edit their 
personal information without contacting HR. 

0 

Staff App launched in 
November 2016. Allows for 
staff to access their electronic 
payslips as well as receive Staff 
Information and notifications 
(training) 

Requests create an 
auditable trail of actions. 

An average of 16,000
transactions per month 

through system. 

Personal Development 

C 

C 

C 

C 

C 

Wide-range of online training and modules 
available through Academy Online Portal. 
More than 24,000 e-learning courses and 
modules completed. 

Essential Skills course delivered to front-line 
staff in conjunction with Cardiff and Vale college 
has provided staff with basic Digital Skills. 

The Academy's "Learning with 'Iechnology"
Week offered basic skills such as Excel, Word 
basics all the way to Social Media Boot camps. 

Personal Reviews offers workers to sit down 121 
with their managers. Allows for training needs to 
be identified and courses to be booked in there 
and then via DigiGov: 95% of all staff completed 
their personal reviews in 18/19 

P
age 37



P
age 38



P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



CONNECTED EDUCATION
Technology is used to improve education outcomes and 

embed digital skills in the workforce

Wi-Fi provision to all 
schools

ICT supply 128 Cardiff Schools 
with their core service.
Includes safe, filtered web access 
for online resources

All Wales 
digital 
learning, 
providing 
resources for 
teachers and 
pupils. 

Several different, 
non-integrated, 
channels of 
communication 
used by different 
schools and teams. 
 

Split across 3 main 
suppliers Google, 
Microsoft, and 
Cardiff.Gov

Current total of 2GB 
bandwidth to 

Schools Network – 
Approx 16MB to 

each school

Cardiff was 
the first LA to 
roll out the 
use of HWB

Current project to align recording, reporting, and 
retention of essential data for 42 teams within Education 
Support Services, enabling efficient data sharing

First steps towards targets 
of 100MB for primaries...  

4 primaries and 1 secondary so far

...and 1GB for 
secondaries 

bandwidth

Collaboration between ICT and BT (PSBA) to 
provide safe web access

Connected Workforce

Connected Citizens

Connected Services 

hwb.gov.wales Education Support 
Services

Core Service

Internal 
Communications Hosted Web FilteringSpeed and Access

Digital 
Strategy

Cardiff 
Council

Wi-Fi refresh across 
schools in 2018

128
5 1

2GB

42
TEAMS

schools trialling 
new delivery 
methods, and

has opted to use 
third party filtering 
and broadband

Time period (April 2018 - March 2019)

P
age 44



CONNECTED EDUCATION
Technology is used to improve education outcomes and 

embed digital skills in the workforce

Time period (April 2018 - March 2019)

Wi-Fi provision to all 
schools

Cashless payment systems 
for catering in all Secondary 
schools across Cardiff. 

Schools Information 
Management System – SIMS 
– moved to cloud storage to 
reduce burden on schools 

maintaining individual 
systems, and increase use 

and availability of info

Phased roll out 
for primary schools, 

25 schools are on the system

50% of Secondary schools in Cardiff are 
teaching Computer Science – Coding, 

Programming, Algorithmic design

Developed by Welsh Government, utilised throughout Wales.
Mandates use of ICT throughout the curriculum to create 

transferable digital skills and knowledge.

Connected Workforce

Connected Citizens

Connected Services 

Cashless Computing UnlockedPupils Places

Computing in Class Digital Competency 
FrameworkPupils Information

Digital 
Strategy

Cardiff 
Council

Wi-Fi refresh across 
schools in 2018

school places 
applications made 

online this year

increase in 
applications 

made on time,

increase in 
applications 
made online

SIMS

1.25% 13%

99.99%

50%

A set of tools for use in classroom 
situations to cover both ICT and 

cross curricular use from
Nursery to Year 9. 

Ensures consistency 
throughout

Cardiff schools. 
Implements 

the Digital 
Competency 

Framework 
and supports 

whole curriculum

Top-ups can be 
online, or through 
on-site machines. 

77%  of all 
transactions 
completed online, 
accounting to 
16% of total 
spend.

P
age 45



CONNECTED EDUCATION
Technology is used to improve education outcomes and 

embed digital skills in the workforce

What teachers, parents, and pupils of Cardiff can expect from the Council and Schools

Align existing resources to ensure teachers, parents, and pupils can 
communicate digitally about the things they need to, when they need to

Digital 
Strategy

Cardiff 
Council

CONNECTED 
EDUCATION

6. Connected 
Classrooms

1. Connected 
Pupils and 

Parents

1. Connected Pupils and Parents

Expand the existing cashless catering platform to become a wide ranging 
portal for parents to manage their financial interactions with the school

2. Online Payments

Complete the secure, portable, individual digital record for each pupil

3. Digital Record

Create systems and data sharing agreements to enhance early 
intervention for safeguarding purposes

4. Informed Safeguarding

Ensure that all schools are supplied with the required connectivity to 
support the Digital Curriculum, Digital Competency Framework, and 
creation and use of joined-up data

5. Connected Schools

Using Welsh Government’s Education Digital Standards as a baseline, 
improve on-site infrastructure by co-operative working between the 
stakeholders – ICT, Schools, and Education Support Services - to 
ensure best use of the improved connectivity is made

6. Connected Classrooms

2. Online 
Payments

3. Digital 
Record

4. Informed 
Safeguarding

5. Connected 
Schools

Connected Workforce

Connected Citizens

Connected Services 

P
age 46



CONNECTED EDUCATION
Technology is used to improve education outcomes and 

embed digital skills in the workforce

What teachers, parents, and pupils of Cardiff can expect from the Council and Schools

Digital Competency Framework as a foundation to build better methods 
of delivering the new Digital Curriculum, with partners in business, 
universities and Smart Cities, and a Culture of Support for the teaching 
staff - ensuring future generations have the skills, knowledge, and ability 
to flourish in the emerging digital economy

Digital 
Strategy

Cardiff 
Council

Our Digital Generations

Work with partners in universities, businesses, and Smart Cities to 
ensure that new build schools are designed with the infrastructure to 
be flexible and fit for the future

Future Builds

Strengthen links between Corporate ICT, Education, and Schools staff 
by aligning communication channels, increasing collaboration and 
share responsibility, and facilitating secure transfer of sensitive pupil 
and school information

Aligned Communications

Establish robust governance by all involved stakeholders to ensure 
these aspirations can be met, and knowledge can be created, used, 
and managed, to best effect.

Governance

Connected Workforce

Connected Citizens

Connected Services 

CONNECTED 
EDUCATION

Ou
r 

Di
gi

ta
l 

Ge
ne

ra
ti

on
s

Fu
tu

re
 B

ui
ld

s

Al
ig

ne
d 

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

Go
ve

rn
an

ce

O
ur

 D
ig

ita
l G

en
er

at
io

ns

Fu
tu

re
 B

ui
ld

s

A
lig

ne
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Cardiff Digital Strategy

Cardiff’s Digital Strategy was published in July

2018 to provide guidelines that support our

ambition to digitalise services.

The digital vision for Cardiff is a Connected City.

There are 9 strands that make a ‘Connected

Cardiff.’

Action Plans were developed for each ‘Connected Cardiff’ strand. Here

is an example of the ‘Connected Citizens’ plan. Each plan outlined our

current position and future aspirations which ranged from short term

to long term.

The aspirations set were tasked to each area to progress and monitor

within their corporate and directorate plans (see below).

We are taking a Digital First moving to a

Digital by Default approach, in order to

ensure digitally excluded citizens are

accounted and provided for every step

of the way.

APPENDIX C

P
age 55



Cardiff 

Digital 

Strategy

P
age 56



Older People: Access to Information, 

Advice and Services

P
age 57



How can older people access 

Information, advice and services? 

Face to face help in Hubs 

Adviceline

Mobile Library

Housebound/ home 

visiting service

Formal and Informal Digital Training

Sheltered 

accommodation

P
age 58



Services across the city

Services provided right across the city so anyone can 

access, regardless of where they live

P
age 59



Partnership Working

P
age 60



Digital Inclusion by Age
Do you use the use the internet (including 

Smart TV and handheld devices)

Age Yes % No %

16-24 100 -

25-44 98 2

45-64 93 7

65-74 79 21

75+ 49 51
*(National Survey of Wales 2018/2019 Dedicated Digital Officer in Adult Learning

P
age 61



Drop in Digital Support 

P
age 62



Volunteers

• Digital Inclusion Officers supported by 41 ‘Digital Volunteer 
Champions’ across the Hubs, to give one to one help on PCs, 

tablets etc

• 64 volunteers aged 60+ covering an array of Volunteering 
opportunities offered throughout the Hubs for older people 

who want to ‘give something back’  

• Community volunteer led clubs include - Lunch club, ‘Knit and 
natter’, gardening

P
age 63



Open Access – Basic Digital Skills for Life 

Courses 

P
age 64



Drop In Surgery – up to date tech

P
age 65



Formal Courses

‘Improve 

your 

Digital 

Skills’

‘Get to know 

your 

Smartphone 

and Tablet’

‘Computers 

for 

Beginners’

‘Advanced 

Digital Skills’

‘ICT and 

Essential 

skills’‘Digital 

Creativity’

‘Appy

Hour

P
age 66



Digital Social Clubs

• Targeted at older / vulnerable learners across 

the city

• Smaller classes than traditional digital training 

courses

• Bring Your Own Device encouraged

• How to change accessibility settings

P
age 67



Partnership Working- Tackling Digital 

Exclusion for older people

P
age 68



Supporting people with a 

disability
DICE – Disability Inclusion in Community Education

Courses for people who have physical or mental 

impairments

• Specific Digital classes across the city, (PC software for 

accessibility – Supanova/ JAWS) including Llandough, Ty 

Canna, 4 Winds

• One to one help as required on tech – free software 

they can download to assist them - accessibility

• Specialist advisors for disability and other welfare 

benefits, who will carry out  home visits

• Robust referrals to Citizens Advice for other specialist 

help

• Partnership Working (Cardiff Deaf Centre, Cardiff 

Institute for the Blind, working with Community 

Inclusion Officers to set up community groups)

• RADAR keys available across all Hubs

P
age 69



Future Plans

Tablet loan scheme

Proposed pilot with Digital Community Wales to loan 

tablets to older people to use in their homes. 

Bid submitted to WG ‘Digital 2030’ to purchase tablets 

to be loaned out. Housebound and mobile service to 

deliver tablets and support users. 

“Digital Health Initiative” Working with GP’S, Public 

Health Wales and Digital Communities Wales.  Social 

Prescribing courses, using Fitbits to improve the health 

and fitness of socially isolated adults. Adult Learning 

team, through Hubs would loan Fitbits and show people 

how to sync with phone/ tablet to access information 

about their health. Looking at health and well being 

apps. Signposting to services in their local area eg

walking football club

GP social prescribing

P
age 70



Dewis Cymru Cardiff Scrutiny Committee
2 October 2019

Sharon Miller

Regional Coordinator Sustainable Social Services

Jessica Player

Regional Dewis Project Manager (Acting) 

APPENDIX D

P
age 71



Dewis Cymru - the national context

Dewis Cymru forms part of the local government response 

to the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act

Duty to provide information about the range of locally 

available services

Formally endorsed by the Association of Directors of Social 

Services in Wales

Adopted by ALL 22 local authorities

Dewis Cymru is developed and hosted centrally – reducing 

costs and avoiding duplication

Dewis Cymru is free to use - owned and funded by local 

authorities across Wales

P
age 72



What is Dewis Cymru?

● Dewis Cymru is THE place to find information 

about well-being services in Wales

● Dewis Cymru gives citizens choice and control 

over the services they engage with

● Helping people find practical sources of help and 

support

P
age 73



What do we mean by ‘Well-being’?

When we talk about well-being, we don’t just mean 

your health. We mean things like where you live, how 

safe and secure you feel, getting out and about, 

keeping in touch with family and friends, and being part 

of your community.

No two people are the same and well-being means 

different things to different people. So Dewis Cymru is 

here to help people find out more about what matters 

to them.

P
age 74



Helping people find practical help

A Resource Directory containing national and local 

resources:

Services – social care, housing,

leisure, libraries, education, 

waste etc.

3rd sector organisations

Community Groups

Commercial companies

Events

Videos/Books

P
age 75



Helping people consider What Matters…

Nationally developed and maintained information pages to help 

citizens think about What Matters to them

P
age 76



A reliable source of information?

Up to date

– Information has a ‘shelf life’

– System notifications prompt for updates

– Out of date information is hidden from the public

Assurance

– Entries have to be reviewed by a local ‘Editor’ prior to publication and after each ‘edit’

– Users can provide feedback on listed resources

– ‘Editors’ have the ability to hide information where concerns are raised

– Central Dewis ‘team’ see all feedback and can act where necessary

P
age 77



Some unique features…

Brousealoud’ 

functionality will 

translate content into 

over 40 languages and 

can read site content 

to the user – here’s 

the ‘Being at home’ 

page in French!

P
age 78



How to get there….

P
age 79



Advanced search functionality …..

P
age 80



Supporting better understanding…
Analytics

– Help services understand how their 

entries are being viewed

– Allow authorities to understand the 

progress of their implementation

– Allow authorities and their partners 

to understand service coverageP
age 81



Information where people need it…

• Not everyone will go to www.dewis.wales

• Dewis Cymru acts as an information store for use by local authorities, their 

partners and others

• ‘Embedded search’ allows you to present branded Dewis search results from 

ANY website

• The embedded results benefit from Dewis functionality

P
age 82



Vale Council Care Services

P
age 83



Dewis Cymru in Cardiff

• 1210 local resources currently ‘live’ in 
Cardiff plus almost 1000 National 
services listed

P
age 84



Usage in Cardiff…

P
age 85



Across Wales
• Dewis Cymru holds details of over 10,000 local and 

also almost 1,000 national resources listed.

• Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan have the most 

listings with over 1,200 local resources listed.

• Over 25 million search results presented in March 

2019. 

• There are over 250 National Information Pages 

covering issues such as being well, social activities, 

help at home, being safe, managing your money and 

looking after someone.  

P
age 86



Avoiding duplication

Information already shared between Dewis Cymru, Infoengine

(with appropriate consent) and NHS Direct resource 

directories.

P
age 87



‘Health & Well-being Wales APP

Information in the hands of front-line staff…

• Available to registered users with ‘whitelisted’ e-mail 
addresses*.

• Service details and contact information for over 10,000 
local and national organisations, community groups 
and services on local mobile devices.

• No internet connection required for day-to-day use.

• Prompts user to update information periodically –
required for ongoing use of the App.

P
age 88



Supporting Older People ……
Together with our partners in the 3rd sector we are:

• Attending  outreach sessions specifically for older people, for example ‘50+ Active Body Healthy Mind 

Festival’ ; ‘Knit and Natter’ sessions; Chair Yoga sessions for the elderly; Goldies (older persons singing 

groups)

• Informally collecting information from older people on whether they use the internet and if they do, 

how. 

• Talking to people about Dewis at outreach events; conducting searches on Dewis with them, writing 

down different options and contact details for them and making some initial phone calls to resources to 

help get the ball rolling. 

• Working with the Cardiff Independent living team and Day Opportunities teams who are now using 

Dewis when they go out on their visits to older people, and use Dewis to find activities and services 

suitable for them.

• Undertaking a social media campaign with targeted facebook adds and tweets, specifically aimed at 

older people

P
age 89



Going forward……

• Continue to develop local ownership and lead on the co-ordination and editing of local information published on 

Dewis

• Work with other service arrears to further develop Dewis and link information on the website to Dewis

• Produce learning videos to help people use and update Dewis

• Increase our presence on social media

• Continue attending outreach events and supporting older people to use Dewis.

P
age 90



CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 2 Oct 2019

COUNCIL HOUSE BUILD & DESIGN STANDARD: Committee Briefing

Purpose of Report

1.   Following the Committee’s Work Programing Forum for 2019-20, Members agreed 

      to receive quarterly updates on the Council’s Council House Development      

      Strategy – with the first item being a verbal briefing at Committee.

2.  In particular, Members wished for the update to include:

 An update on the current status of property developments;

 An update on the scheduling of planning submissions

 A focused update on design standards – to include an update on possible work 

with shared design standards with Housing Associates (as mentioned at 

CASSC’s June 2019 Committee) and detailed progress of the required update 

on Design Standards (as mentioned at CASSC’s May 2019 Committee)

 Update on place making – with particular focus on what is informing place 

making. 

Background

3.    In line with Capital Ambition, the Council’s Housing Development team are

       aiming to build 1,000 new homes by May 2022, delivering 2,000 new homes

       in the longer term.

4.    Currently, there are just under 8,000 people on the housing waiting list. A recent 

       Local Housing Market Assessment indicated that 2,024 new affordable homes 

Page 91

Agenda Item 5



       are required each year to meet the demand. However, on average over the last 

       5 years the social housing sector has only delivered around 250 new homes 

       each year.

5.    The key objectives for the strategy are:

 Clear Vision

 Understanding Need

 Land

 Procurement

 Delivering in Volume and at Pace

 High Standards

6.     Within the meeting, Members will receive the presentation attached at Appendix 
        A in order to be informed on the current status of developments, the current 

        scheduling of planning submissions and the required update on design 

        standards. 

Scope of Scrutiny

7.  The scope of this scrutiny is to use the evidence presented to Committee to 

judge whether the Council’s developments in its Council House Build programme 

is progressing sufficiently and being delivered effectively. 

Way Forward 

8.   Councillor Lynda Thorne, Cabinet Member for Housing & Communities has been

       invited to attend for this item and may wish to make a statement. She will be  

       supported by officers from the People & Communities Directorate who will be 

       providing Members with a briefing on their requested areas.

Page 92



Legal Implications

9.     The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

Recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions taken by 

or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; 

(b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the 

powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be 

undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the 

Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be 

properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to 

its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

10.    The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this   

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

Page 93



RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to:

 

i. Consider the information provided in this report, its Appendix and information 

received at the meeting;

ii. Decide whether it wishes to relay any comments or observations to the Cabinet.

 

DAVINA FIORE

Director of Governance and Legal Services 

26 Sep 2019

Page 94



Delivering 2000 council homes 

Within a robust Design Standard 
David Jaques 

September 2019

APPENDIX A

P
age 95



Delivering new homes within Cardiff’s overall Capital Ambition Objectives

Deliver at least 2,000 
new council homes, 

of which 1,000 will be 
delivered by May 

2022

Safe, confident & 
empowered 
communities

Regeneration

Cardiff 
Commitment –
employment & 

apprenticeships: 

Social 
Responsibility 

policy – invest in 
local people & 
communities: 

Resilient Growth; 
Understand 

Housing need 

Dumballs Road 
redevelopment:
New affordable 

homes 

Supporting people 
out of poverty: 
quality, energy 
efficient homes 

Growing older: 
independent 
living, social 

isolation, enhance 
quality of life 

Working for 

Wales

P
age 96



Current progress 

• Leading the way – Largest council build

Programme in Wales 

• Total projected budget £350 million 

• Innovative Housing Schemes 

• Strong desire to lead the way in design

• Exciting opportunities 

3.1 Cardiff Grows in a Resilient Way 

P
age 97



Cardiff Design Standards 2015

P
age 98



Cardiff Design Standard 2015

• Reviewed good practice

• Policy & technical guidance

• Input from a range of internal partners

& external consultants

P
age 99



Cardiff Design Standard 2015

Character, Access & Movement – key principles

• Internal design review –placemaking

• Larger schemes reviewed at design 

Commission for Wales 

• Tenure blind Market sales, Social 

rent & AHO

P
age 100



A wider programme, updated Design Standards

Why update?

• Changes in Planning Policy 

• Suds & SAB 

• A Standard to cover all of the council’s 

schemes 

• An updated review of good practice

• Affordable Housing review 

• Opportunities within the programme  

A focus on…..

• Urban design 

• Placemaking

• Green infrastructure 

• Community gardens/growing spaces 

• Sustainability & Innovation 

• Tenure blind

• Designing out crime 

P
age 101



A wider programme, updated Design Standards

Who is involved? 

2019 Cardiff 
Design Guide

Planning & 
Placemaking team

Ecology Team Design 
Commission 

for Wales

Energy & 
Sustainability 

team

External 
Architects & 

planning 
consultants  

Highways & 
Infrastructure

Drainage & 
SAB 

Housing 
management 

What are we reviewing?

• What has worked well? 

• Exemplar schemes

• Design Guides & good 

practice

• Welsh Government 

Affordable Housing 

review 

• Welsh Government DQR 

review 

• Space standards for 

council homes 

• Space standards for sale 

units 

P
age 102



A wider programme, updated Design Standards

Timescales ? 

Review of 
Cardiff Living 

phase 1 

Review 
of good 
practice 

Review 
of 

current 
policies 

Aug-Oct 2019 

Review with 
external 

consultants & 
DCFW

Internal 
review 

Draft 
document

Nov–Jan 2020 

February 2020

March 2020

Cabinet Briefing 

Adoption of 

Standard

P
age 103



Working together – delivering more….

1.1 Cardiff is a great place to grow up 

1.2 Cardiff is a great place to grow Older

1.3 Supporting people out of poverty 

1.4 Safe, Confident & Empowered Communities 

Channel View 

• Proposal to rebuild the 

Estate & build circa 350 

new homes

• Replace the older person 

tower block with purpose 

built ‘Care-Ready’ scheme 

• Day rooms, community 

space & roof garden 

• Initial consultation undertaken with residents

• Summer 2019 appoint consultant team to 

undertake outline Planning 

P
age 104



ITEM 7: WORK PROGRAMMING  

11/09/2019 02/10/2019 06/11/2019 04/12/2019 08/01/2020 FEB DATE TBC 04/03/2020

Currently No
Scrutiny
Scheduled
(subject to
change) 06/05/2020 03/06/2020 08/07/2020 TBC

monitoring pre-decision
policy

development/
review

Committee Item 1

RSAB Annual
Report      2018-
2019

Older People -
Access to
information,
advice and
services

Care Home
Fee Setting
strategy
2019 - 2024

Fear of Crime
and its effect
on Cardiff's
Communities
SHORT
SCRUTINY

Strategic Plan to
Deliver Excellent
Outcomes for
Adults
(Ref to Capital
Ambition
Delivery
Programme)

Corporate Plan The
effectiveness of
multi-agency
work in
addressing
rough sleepers
needs
SHORT
SCRUTINY

DDP 20/21
People &
Communities (
Q3
Performance as
a Supplement)

2019/20
Quarter 4
Performance

Local
Authority
Social
Services
Annual
report
2019/20

Committee Item 2

2019/20
Quarter 1
Performance -
Adult Social
Services &
People &
Communities

Council House
Build & Design
Standards -
Committee
Briefing

Community
Well-being
Hubs
Programme -
12 month
update tied in
with Hub &
Library
Strategy

Cardiff & Vale
Carers Strategy

2019/20
Budget

DDP 20/21
Adult Social
Services

CASSC Annual
Report
2019-2020

Committee Item 3

CASSC Work
Programme
2019/20

 Disable
Facility
Adaptations -
review of
outcomes for
individuals
and value for
money

Domicilliary
Care Re-
tender

2019/20 Quarter
2 Performance

HRA Business
Plan

2019/20
Quarter 3
Performance

Access to
Mental Health
Services

Cabinet
Response to
CYP &
CASSC's
Inquiry '
Preventing
Young
People's
Involvement
in Drug
Dealing'

Committee Business
Items -

Correspondanc
e ,FWP

Correspondan
ce & FWP

Correspondan
ce & FWP

Correspondan
ce & FWP

Correspondance
& FWP

Correspondanc
e & FWP

Correspondanc
e & FWP

Correspondance
& FWP

Correspondan
ce & FWP

Inquiries "Closer To Home"/ Out of County Adult Placements

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 7



Briefs/Reports/
Updates outside of
Committee

Brexit
Preperations

Voids
Management
Quarterly
Update
To also include
an update on
the
recommendati
ons submited
in the
Committee's
2015
Performance
Panel Report

Impact of
Renting
Homes Wales
Act 2016

Voids
Management -
Quarterly
Update

Council House
Build & Design

Standards -
Quarterly

Update

Voids
Management
- Quarterly
Update

Implementation
of the Learning
Disabilities
Commissioning

Strategy’s
Action Plan

Voids
Management
- Quarterly
Update

Briefs/Reports/
Updates outside of
Committee

 WAO Corporate
Safeguarding

Regulation &
Inspection of
Social Care
(Wales) Act 2016
- Quarterly
Update

CRT & DOM.
Care Re-
Modelling
Briefing

Regulation &
Inspection of
Social Care
(Wales) Act
2016 -
Quarterly
Update

Council House
Build & Design
Standards -
Quarelty
Update

Regulation &
Inspection of
Social Care
(Wales) Act
2016 -
Quarterly
Update

Briefs/Reports/
Updates outside of
Committee

Cabinet Dates 26-Sep 10-Oct 21-Nov 12-Dec 23-Jan 20-Feb 19-Mar 02-Apr 14-May TBC TBC

P
age 106



CYNGOR CAERDYDD
CARDIFF COUNCIL 

COMMUNITY & ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2 Oct 2019

CORRESPONDENCE REPORT

Background

1. Following most Committee meetings, the Chair writes a letter to the relevant 

Cabinet Member or officer, summing up the Committee’s comments and 

recommendations regarding the issues considered. 

2. At the Committee meeting on 11 Sep 2019, Members received an update 

detailing the correspondence sent and received up to that meeting. Since 

then, additional correspondence has been sent. The current position is set 

out below:

i. Awaiting a response – from the Chair to the Cabinet Member for Social 

Care, Health and Well-being, providing the Committees comments on the 

Cardiff & Vale Regional Safeguarding Board Annual Report 2018-19 (Re: 

Adults Board) and Quarter One Performance Report 2019-20.

ii. Awaiting a response – from the Chair to the Cabinet Member for Housing 

& Communities, providing the Committees comments on People and 

Communities Quarter One Performance Report 2019-20.

3. Copies of the Chair’s letters and responses received can be found on the 

Council’s website page for the relevant Committee meeting, with a hyperlink 

provided at the top of the page, entitled ‘Correspondence Following 

Committee Meeting’. Access to the page can be found here.

Page 107

Agenda Item 8

https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=3904&Ver=4&LLL=0


Way Forward

4. During their meeting, Members will have the opportunity to reflect on the 

correspondence update.

Legal Implications

5. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct legal 

implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters 

under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report 

with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out 

any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions 

taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the 

Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be 

within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the 

Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements 

imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in 

all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

6. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

Page 108



RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to reflect on the update on committee 

correspondence. 

Davina Fiore
Director - Governance and Legal Services
26 Sep 2019

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Older People: Access to Information, Advice and Services
	Appendix A Digital Strategy 2018_
	Appendix B Digital Strategy Action Plan_
	0000121 RC DS-Connected Businesses19jun2019
	PJ RC 12387DS-Connected Citizens Summary18june2019.pdf
	PJ RC 12404 DS-Connected Education Sum19june2019
	PJ RC 12405 DS-Connected MembersSum19 june 2019
	PJ RC 12444 DS-Connected ManagementSum 19 june2019
	0000018 RC DS-Connected Partners19june2019
	0000122 RC DS-Connected ServicesSum19june2019
	0000016 RC DS-Connected VistorsSum 19june2019
	PJ RC 12445 DS-Connected WorkforceSum19june2019

	Appendix C Scrutiny Committee 2nd Oct - Digital inclusion presentation
	Appendix D - Dewis Cymru Scrutiny Oct 2019

	5 Council House Build and Design Standards Update
	Appendix A Scrutiny_design standards

	7 Work Programme
	8 Correspondence Statement



